Winning With Wimpy

Consider the following auctions:

(a)  
West
North
East
South

(b) 
West
North
East
South



 
 1(
 Pass
 1(
 Dbl?

 
 1(
 Pass
 1(
 1NT?

  

(c)
West
North
East
South

(d)
West
North
East
South

 1(
 Pass
 1(
  2(?

 
 1(
 Pass
 1(
  2(?

Do you and your partner have an agreement about what the differences would be between these 4 different bids?  Most casual partnerships wouldn't.  I have discussed these exact sequences with most of my regular partners, but not with many of my occasional ones. I'm sure I'm not alone. It doesn't really matter, but I play that the first 3 bids are all takeout and the last one is natural. For  (a), I would tend to have both majors and very close to an opening hand. If partner passes for penalty, I'll provide some defensive tricks.  With (b), I have a VERY weak hand, (5-5 or more), and am simply suggesting a possible sacrifice later. I generally only make this call at favorable vulnerability.  I will bid the suit I am under, (c), when my hand is reasonably strong, but far more offensively than defensively oriented. When two suits are bid and I bid the suit I am over, (d), it is natural, and non forcing.  A few possible examples:

(a)
( KQ84
( AK75 
( 74
( 984

(b)
( J98652 
( Q9754 
( 4 
( 6 

(c)
( KQJ83 
( KJT73
( 7 
( A8

(d)
( J75
 
( K4 
  ( AQJ864
( 84

I bring these examples up because of a disturbing situation that came up the other day during a team event. 
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West
North
East
South


 Pass
 1(
Pass
 1(
  

 2(*?
Pass      2(        3(
 Pass     3NT
 All Pass

East alerted  2( as showing the majors and my partner passed.  The nature of my hand suggested West intended his bid as natural - and that possibility should have occurred to East as well.  My partner passed and East bid 2(.  I bid 3(, knowing full well my partner would assume it to be a cue bid of some kind, and he bid 3NT.  The defense took the first 6 tricks and my partner claimed the rest.  As dummy, I watched the play of the hand, and after some thought decided to call the director. 
I protested that I had a problem with East who went out of his way to alert a bid when no alert was necessary. He and his partner had no convention card filled out, and, after some questioning, it appeared they didn't really have an agreement about the bid in this particular sequence. Furthermore, there was plenty of evidence (in East's own hand) to suggest  that West's bid might not be for both majors.  After much deliberation, the director reluctantly decided to throw the result out. I say reluctantly, because the director/owner of a club must walk a very thin line when deciding whether to rule against a player (in a gray judgment area) in a situation where that player might well decide to stop patronizing the club.  To say that these players were unhappy with the ruling was quite an understatement.  To them, it appeared that my partner and I got a poor score, whined about it, and got an adjustment.  You can and should strive to avoid this happening to you.  
It's not a crime to have no agreement about bids in complicated sequences. Even with my most practiced partnerships, there will seldom be sessions where I'm not forced to improvise from time to time. It's almost impossible, even in the strongest partnerships, to discuss every possible contingency.  Say we agree to play "Systems On" after NT overcalls. Does that mean we play it the same way after a NT balance? Say we agree to play DONT over opponents 1 NT. Does that mean we play it over 2NT? 

The answer is a resounding NO!  If you haven't specifically discussed it, you don't have an agreement. This happens all the time, and unfortunately most players feel compelled to attempt an educated guess.  This is the wrong thing to do. In most cases, your opponents can guess what's going on every bit as accurately as you. If you know what a bid means - if you have specifically discussed that exact sequence - by all means tell the opponents! It's your duty. When there is possible doubt, you must resist the temptation to demonstrate how bright you are.
DO NOT GUESS!  DO NOT ALERT!  When asked about a sequence that you haven't previously discussed, your answer should be a short and simple, "We have no agreement."  Now if it subsequently turns out that you did have an agreement and you forgot it, you could be assessed a penalty - but in these situations you are much more likely to harm yourself than harm the opponents.
Trust me that when your partner makes a conventional call and (when asked) you reply that you have no agreement, he will panic significantly more than the players on either side of you. Often, he may attempt to later (illegally) clarify his intent, and then you might get into trouble. Even a seemingly harmless offer to make your best guess will comfort your partner far more than anyone else.  He is not entitled to know that you think you know what he means. You either know or you don't. Treat it as a learning experience.
When the opponents tell you that they have no agreement, it will usually be in your best interest to leave it at that. Further questions rate to help them far more than help you.  If they aren't sure, why help them out? Certainly, in any event, wait until the auction is over before asking anything that might clear up their confusion. The general rule is: If you don't plan to bid regardless of the answer, don't ask the question!
